
Anyone requesting auxiliary aids or services is asked to contact
the Administration Department five business days prior to the meeting.

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA
Regular Meeting

Wednesday, May 23, 2018
6:00 PM

Council Chambers

1.    CALL TO ORDER

2.    PROOF OF POSTING

3.    ROLL CALL

4.    PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

5.    SPECIAL RECOGNITIONS

5.a    Boston Post Cane Award

5.b    Hooksett Fire-Rescue - Swearing-in ceremony new Firefighters/AEMTs

5.c    Hooksett Municipal Employees - New HIres

5.d    Hooksett Youth Achiever of the Month

6.    SCHEDULED APPOINTMENTS

6.a    Carl Branco, Pawnbroker/Secondhand Dealer Applicant (1261 Hooksett Rd. Unit 3) (item
16a)

7.    APPROVAL OF MINUTES

7.a    Public:  05/09/18
TC Minutes 050918-U.docx

7.b    Non-Public:  05/09/18

8.    AGENDA OVERVIEW

9.    PUBLIC HEARINGS

10.    CONSENT AGENDA 1

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/189701/TC_Minutes_050918-U.pdf


Anyone requesting auxiliary aids or services is asked to contact
the Administration Department five business days prior to the meeting.

10.a    Assessing Abatement
staff reporttaxlien.docx

BackupStaffReport5232018.pdf

11.    TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT

12.    PUBLIC INPUT - 15 MINUTES

13.    NOMINATIONS AND APPOINTMENTS

14.    15 MINUTE RECESS

15.    OLD BUSINESS

15.a    Tabled at 5/9/18 Town Council Meeting.  Motion to accept the donation of $2,500.00 from
Monique Cote-Melendez, to the Town of Hooksett for the Hooksett Police Department K9 program
per RSA 31:95-b,III (b) and return that amount to the Police Departments budget, Donation line.

K9-Staff_Report.docx

SR Trust Fund - K-9 Program.docx

RSA 31.19.pdf

15.b    New Pedestrian Bridge Update (Change Order #2 tabled from 5/9/18 Town Council
Meeting)

Chronical List of Events - ED SWETT.pdf

15.c    Rte. 3A & Hackett Hill Road Roundabout Update

16.    NEW BUSINESS

16.a    Pawnbroker/Secondhand Dealer License - 1261 Hooksett Rd. Unit 3
staff report - DeRosa Jewelers.docx

scan.pdf

16.b    Radio Purchase for rescue boat
staff report - template-x.docx

Hooksett FD VM900 Boat 04-20-18 (2).pdf

16.c    Street Name Approval for Hooksett Village water storage tank
2

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/187541/staff_reporttaxlien.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/187502/BackupStaffReport5232018.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/187910/K9-Staff_Report.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/189417/SR_Trust_Fund_-_K-9_Program.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/189418/RSA_31.19.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/189423/Chronical_List_of_Events_-_ED_SWETT.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/189414/staff_report_-_DeRosa_Jewelers.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/189422/scan.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/187547/staff_report_-_template-x.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/187548/Hooksett_FD_VM900_Boat_04-20-18__2_.pdf


Anyone requesting auxiliary aids or services is asked to contact
the Administration Department five business days prior to the meeting.

Staff_Report_-_Street_Name_Approval_-_Brickyard_Pond_Rd.docx

Street Approval Form - Brickyard Pond Rd..pdf

16.d    Sewer Commission - Asset Management Program for the wastewater collection system
Staff Report Asset Mng Program 052318.pdf

Asset Management Program.pdf

16.e    Sewer Commission - Construction of Wastewater Treatment facility to upgrade and expand
the flow capacity of the plant (AKA Phases III and IIIA Capital Improvements)

Staff Report SRF App Phases III-IIIA 052318.pdf

SRF Application Phases III-IIIA.pdf

16.f    2018-2019 Town Council Meeting Schedule
Staff Report TC Meeting Schedule 2018-2019.docx

2018-19 TC MEETING SCHEDULE 052417.doc

16.g    Classification Pay Plan Update
Staff Report Classification Pay Plan 052318.docx

CLASSIFICATION PAY PLAN 052318.xlsx

16.h    Unsealing of Council Non-Public session minutes (June 2017 - May 2018), if in the opinion
of a majority of members, the circumstances that sealed the minutes no longer apply in
accordance with RSA 91A:3 III.

Staff Report Non-Public June2017-May2018.docx

17.    SUB-COMMITTEE REPORTS

18.    PUBLIC INPUT

19.    NON-PUBLIC SESSION

19.a    NH RSA 91-A:3 II (a) The dismissal, promotion, or compensation of any public employee or
the disciplining of such employee, or the investigation of any charges against him or her.

19.b    NH RSA 91-A:3 II (b) The hiring of any person as a public employee.

19.c    NH RSA 91-A:3 II (c) Matters which, if discussed in public, would likely affect adversely the
reputation of any person, other than a member of the public body itself.

20.    ADJOURNMENT

3

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/187913/Staff_Report_-_Street_Name_Approval_-_Brickyard_Pond_Rd.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/185836/Street_Approval_Form_-_Brickyard_Pond_Rd..pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/187921/Staff_Report_Asset_Mng_Program_052318.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/185098/Asset_Management_Program.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/187923/Staff_Report_SRF_App_Phases_III-IIIA_052318.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/185101/SRF_Application_Phases_III-IIIA.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/187924/Staff_Report_TC_Meeting_Schedule_2018-2019.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/185108/2018-19_TC_MEETING_SCHEDULE_052417.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/187925/Staff_Report_Classification_Pay_Plan_052318.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/185663/CLASSIFICATION_PAY_PLAN_052318.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/187927/Staff_Report_Non-Public_June2017-May2018.pdf


Anyone requesting auxiliary aids or services is asked to contact
the Administration Department five business days prior to the meeting.

Public Input

1. Two 15-minute Public Input sessions will be allowed during each Council Meeting. Time
will be divided equally among those wishing to speak, however,no person will be allowed
to speak for more than 5 minutes. 

2. No person may address the council more than twice on any issue in any
meeting.Comments must be addressed to the Chair and must not be personal or
derogatory about any other person.

3. Any questions must be directly related to the topic being discussed and must be
addressed to the Chair only, who after consultation with Council and Town Administrator,
will determine if the question can be answered at that time. Questions cannot be directed
to an individual Councilor and must not be personal in nature. Issues raised during Public
Input, which cannot be resolved or answered at that time, or which require additional
discussion or research, will be noted by the Town Administrator who will be responsible
for researching and responding to the comment directly during normal work hours or by
bringing to the Council for discussion at a subsequent meeting. The Chair reserves the
right to end questioning if the questions depart from clarification to deliberation.

4. Council members may request a comment be added to New Business at a subsequent
meeting. 

5. No one may speak during Public Input except the person acknowledged by the Chair.
Direct questions or comments from the audience are not permitted during Public Input.

4



TC Draft Minutes 050918-U 1

TOWN COUNCIL MINUTES - UNOFFICIAL1
Regular Meeting2

Wednesday, May 09, 20183
6:00 PM4

Council Chambers5
6
7
8
9

1.    CALL TO ORDER10
11

Chairman James Sullivan called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.12
13

2.    PROOF OF POSTING14
15

Town Administrator, Dr. Dean Shankle, indicated that the meeting post was done on May 2nd, 16
2018  by Donna Fitzpatrick.17

18
3.    ROLL CALL #119

20
In attendance:  Councilor Donald Winterton, Councilor John Giotas, Councilor Timothy 21
Tsantoulis, Councilor James Levesque, Councilor Alex Walczyk, Councilor Robert Duahime, 22
Councilor John Durand, Councilor David Ross, and Chairman James Sullivan.23

24
25

4.    PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE26
27

Following the pledge, Chairman Sullivan welcomed new Council member, John Durand, and 28
reminded everyone to speak into the microphones.29

30
5.    SPECIAL RECOGNITIONS31

32
5.a    Hooksett Municipal Employees - New Hires – None to report today.33

34
5.b    2018 Citizen of the Year - Jeff Scott 35
Staff_Report 2018 COY.docx36
COY.pdf37

38
The Hooksett Lions Club has selected Jeff Scott as the 2018 Hooksett Citizen of the Year.  A 39
celebratory ceremony will be held on May 18th at the Puritan Conference Center.  Councilor 40
Ross moved, second by Councilor Tsantoulis, to authorize the Chair or his designee to 41
present the Citizen of the Year Proclamation as read at the May 18th Citizen of the Year 42
Dinner and Ceremony.  Motion passed unanimously, 9-0.43

44
6.    SCHEDULED APPOINTMENTS45

46
6.a    Annual Activity Update - Trustees of the Trust Fund 47

48
The three Trustees of the Trust Fund, Henry Roy, Claire Lyons, and the newest member, 49
Linda Krewson, appeared before the Council to provide an annual activity update.  Mr. Roy 50
said they are statutorily controlled under RSA 31-25 and their mission is to surpass inflation 51 5



TC Draft Minutes 050918-U 2

and conserve capital which has been done this past year.  He said the annual inflation rate 52
was 2.4 percent; their return at year end March 2018 was 3.69 percent and 7.01 for the trust 53
funds.  He said the financial advisor engaged by the town seven years ago has done a 54
“decent job for us”.  Mr. Roy reported the status and earnings on various accounts.  Councilor 55
Tsantoulis thanked the Board members and welcomed the newest trustee.  In response to 56
Councilor Duhaime, Mr. Roy said that last year was a better year but they’ve managed to 57
surpass inflation again this year.  He added that the rates of return are after fees are paid.58

59
6.b    Christine Soucie, Finance Director - Quarterly Financial Report  for the Third Quarter of FY 60
2017-18.61
Quarterly Financial Report 3-31-18.pdf62

63
Finance Director, Christine Soucie, went over the quarterly financial report included in the 64
Council packet.  She said the total operating budget is at 73 percent where it should be; total 65
revenue collected amounts to $5,259,978, or 72 percent.  The budget amounts include 66
encumbrances, transfers, grants, and donations approved by Council as of March 31 of each 67
year.  Director Soucie went through departmental budgets noting that:68

69
Administration:  Actuals are a little lower than last year due to the timing of the liability 70
insurance payment for March.  The largest change in the budget is an increase in property 71
liability insurance of $25,000.  The legal line is most volatile, having spent 82 percent of the 72
legal account.73

74
Fire-Rescue: 73 percent spent.  The FY17-18 budget has increased just over $300,000, 75
largely due to a three percent increase in wages and overtime, a one percent increase in the 76
employer share of NH Retirement, two percent increase in health insurance costs, and 77
another two percent in general operations.  The department is struggling with vehicle 78
maintenance.  Director Soucie said she expects any overage will come from their savings so 79
there shouldn’t be a need for a transfer.80

81
Police Department:  trending where they should be; have had six officer turnovers; have four 82
openings currently and the dispatcher position has been filled.  83

84
Public Works – Highway Division:  budget has increased by $350,000 over the last three 85
years, with the majority ($300,000) due to road reconstruction (warrant passed in 2016).  86
Director Soucie anticipates there will be enough funds to cover any shortages87

88
Public Works – Recycling & Transfer Division:  this budget has increased $75,000 over the 89
past three years primarily due to staffing.  Health insurance has increased five percent due to 90
employee plan changes and increase in premiums.  Director Soucie said there is concern 91
about vehicle maintenance and “we might squeeze by on tipping fees”.92

93
Director Soucie said revenues are looking good; she has no concerns.  Motor vehicle 94
registration will hit $3.4 million; interest and penalties may fall short.  State revenue is less in 95
a number of areas; such as, rooms and meals taxes, retirement.  Councilor Winterton asked 96
about the impact fee contributions.  Director Soucie said road impact fees are collected from 97
developers and homeowners.  Councilor Winterton also noted that the Fire-Rescue increase 98
would have been greater had not firefighters been moved to ambulance service.  Councilor 99
Duhaime asked about the highway block grant; $260,000 is waiting to be used.  Chairman 100

6



TC Draft Minutes 050918-U 3

Sullivan said a decision on use of those funds will be made within the fiscal year.  Director 101
Soucie said there was no chance of losing the funds.102

103
6.c    Gianna Valentino104

105
Gianna Valentino of 125 Chester Turnpike came forward to provide her opinion on the 106
resurrection of the K9 unit within the Police Department, and animal control.  She referred to 107
meeting minutes of October 11, 2017 and explained the reason why she was not at that 108
meeting.  She listed a number of reasons why she feels the town is putting the cart before the 109
horse regarding the K9 Officer position and an Animal Control staffer.  She said she’d like to 110
see more data, outcomes, history of incidents, cost-benefit of both positions, and how often 111
canines are used.112

113
6.d    Police Chief Janet Bouchard - General Discussion114

115
Police Chief, Janet Bouchard, came forward to answer any questions the councilmen may 116
have.  The Chief said in October she didn’t want to devote and say they would do it, if they 117
could not.  Chairman Sullivan read the relevant section of the October 11, 2017 meeting 118
minutes.  The Chief said she was not opposed to an Animal Control Officer but that position 119
and the K9 Officer position are totally separate jobs.  She feels that a K9 Officer is more 120
important right now given the drug epidemic throughout the state and in Hooksett.  Chief 121
Bouchard said it is a new program being put forth; it is still being established and has the 122
support from the public.  Councilor Winterton indicated that Administration and the Council 123
have attempted to limit full time employees at a lean level while providing optimal customer 124
services and since tonight is the first time a citizen has expressed her opinion that an animal 125
control officer is needed, he suggested that Administration evaluate the matter and bring it 126
back to the Council for consideration.  Councilor Tsantoulis said it is his understanding that 127
the PD has been doing an outstanding job with the task and it would be difficult to fund such 128
a position.  He would need more data to convince him that the position of Animal Control 129
Officer was necessary.  Chairman Sullivan said “whether we have animal control and K9, 130
they are separate”.131

132
Chairman Sullivan asked the Chief if she had an update on the Firebird Motel situation.  She 133
said things were status quo; there has been no uptick in activity.134

135
7.    APPROVAL OF MINUTES136

137
7.a    Public:  04/25/18138
TC Agenda 042518.docx139

140
Councilor Levesque moved, second by Councilor Tsantoulis, to approve the Town Council 141
meeting minutes of April 25, 2018.  Following some discussion, Councilor Ross moved, 142
second by Councilor Winterton, to table the minutes of April 25, 2018, so that a verbatim 143
transcription could be developed related to the question and answer section on the Lilac 144
Bridge.  Motion passed unanimously, 9-0.145

146
7.b    Public:  04/30/18147
TC Minutes 043018-U.docx148

149
Councilor Tsantoulis moved, second by Councilor Walczyk, to approve the Town Council 150
meeting minutes off April 30, 2018, as presented.  Motion passed unanimously, 9-0.151

7



TC Draft Minutes 050918-U 4

152
8.    AGENDA OVERVIEW153

154
9.    PUBLIC HEARINGS155

156
10.    CONSENT AGENDA157

158
10.a    Motion to accept the donation of $2,500.00 from Monique Cote-Melendez, to the Town of 159
Hooksett for the Hooksett Police Department per RSA 31:95-b, III (b) and return that amount to 160
the Police Departments 2017-2018/2018-2019 fiscal budget, Donation line. 161
Staff Report - Cote-Melendez K9 Donation.docx162

163
Councilor Winterton, as requested at a previous meeting on a different matter, asked where 164
the donor lives since it may have relevance.  The issue will be placed on the Council 165
Workshop agenda.  Councilor Ross moved, second by Councilor Winterton, to accept the 166
donation of $2,500 from Monique Cote-Melendez to the town for the Hooksett Fire 167
Department per RSA 31:95-b, III (b) and return that amount to the Police Department’s 2017-168
18 and 2018-19 fiscal budget donation line.  169

170
Councilor Winterton said since the Council is discussing a K9 program being self-funded, it 171
would make sense to establish a separate fund or account where donations can go into so 172
that donations are not intermingled with the budget.  Chairman Sullivan said it could be 173
handled “as we did with Old Town Hall funds”.  Finance Director Soucie said they could 174
establish an expendable trust where trustees would hold the funds and be signed off on by an 175
agent.  Donations go into a balance sheet account that is not reported on until yearend.  176
Funds can be tracked to make sure money is being spent as the donor wishes.177

178
Councilor Winterton said telling citizens of Hooksett that the K9 program will be self-funded 179
by the community is more transparent.  Councilor Ross asked how such an account would be 180
liquidated if the K9 program fails to be established.  Director Soucie was unsure on trust 181
dissolution.  Dr. Shankle stated that “what we are talking about is not the officer but those 182
things to take care of a dog”.  Councilor Ross moved, second by Councilor Winterton, to table 183
the motion.  Motion passed unanimously, 9-0.184

185
11.    TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT186

187
Dr. Shankle reported the following:188

189
Hooksettites luncheon is scheduled for May 25th at the Derryfield Country Club.  190

Chairman Sullivan and Dr. Shankle will plan to attend.191
Old Town Hall work is moving ahead.  Engineer is putting together an RFP to figure out 192

structural engineering needing to be done and will need to be bid out.  Hopes to193
encumber from this year’s budget so that work can be done this summer.194

Chester Turnpike – he, the engineer, Diane Boyce, Steve Couture and neighbors have 195
gotten together.  Parking will now be provided along the road.  More information will be 196
provided to the Council at the meeting after next.197

Meeting was held at courthouse once a month.  The last meeting was held – rodent 198
situation has been rectified and there are no longer complaints about the cold.  199
Chairman Sullivan suggested finding use for the empty space.200

8



TC Draft Minutes 050918-U 5

Meeting was held at the pedestrian bridge with the Attorney General’s office and the NH 201
Department of Environmental Services.  A meeting with the town attorney and the 202
AG’s office has been set for May 30th.  The Army Corps is interested and they were at 203
the meeting.204

Met with SNHU President again and keeping up with what is going on.  According to 205
Councilor Winterton, the new dorm has been put on hold and the old dorm will be torn 206
down.  There is concern that wooden buildings might not be the safest places.  They 207
have decided not to build another dorm this year.  Police Chief Bouchard was there 208
and discussed a lot of safety issues.  They were impressed with the town doing active 209
shooter training.  They don’t have a police force and their security doesn’t carry 210
firearms.  Chief Bouchard is taking a leadership course offered by the university and 211
they have offered to waive the course fee because it would be advantage to the town 212
and school, Chairman Sullivan said the school district has a good relationship with the 213
school.  Dr. Shankle said the school is waiting for a list on what the town could use 214
interns for and he is working on getting an auctioneer for the Dartmouth Street 215
property and condo at St. Mary’s.216

217
12.    PUBLIC INPUT - 15 MINUTES218

219
13.    NOMINATIONS AND APPOINTMENTS220

221
The Planning Board has requested guidance from the Council on removing a 222
committee/commission member for lack of attendance at meetings and what the procedure is 223
to remove a member and replace with an alternate member.  Chairman Sullivan thought the 224
Board would mimic the Council’s procedures.225

226
Donna Fitzpatrick indicated that the Planning Board has its own rules.  Councilor Winterton 227
will follow up.  Chairman Sullivan said “if they don’t have their own attendance rules, the 228
Board should revert back to the requirements of the charter”.  Councilor Ross said the right 229
thing to do is to ask for their resignation.  Councilor Duhaime said this has happened before 230
and they moved to the alternate member.231

232
14.    15 MINUTE RECESS233

234
15.    OLD BUSINESS235

236
15.a    New Pedestrian Bridge Update - ($240,134.01 Change Order tabled from 4/25/18 Town 237
Council Meeting)238
Staff Report - Lilac Pedestrial Bridge - Change order 2.docx239
Lilac Pedestrian Bridge Change Order 2.pdf240
LilacBridge#2.Memo - S. Keach.pdf241

242
Councilor Duhaime moved, second by Councilor Giotas, to remove this item from the table.  243
Motion passed unanimously, 9-0.244

245
Diane Boyce, Public Works Director, provided the Council with updated information pertaining 246
to Change Order 2, less the shop drawings, but including a memorandum dated April 5, 2018 247
from Steven Keach of Keach Nordstrom Associates.  It seems the scope of additional work 248
covered under the Change Order is the result of a stop work order issued by the town and the 249
town’s subsequent request for a work plan and subsequent corresponding cost proposal for 250
supplemental work items.  Director Boyce said they are learning that there are more sections 251

9



TC Draft Minutes 050918-U 6

of the Change Order that were realized costs and should be included in the payment.  252
Director Boyce said town attorney, Matt Serge, has advised the town “go forward and pay”.253

254
Director Boyce recommended that the Council approve partial payment of Change Order 2 in 255
the amount of $155,526.76 to cover the following costs:256

257
2.1 Winter temporary bypass of sewer system $17,714.54258
2.2 Temporary bypass sewer system $68,181.82259
2.3 Demobilization (Winter 2018) $5,000260
2.4 Install site security measurers for winter shutdown $3,000261
2.6.1 Increased efforts required to install sewer line in cold weather $44,736262
2.6.2 Increased efforts required to install water line under bridge in cold weather $16,89440263

264
In response to Chairman Sullivan, Director Boyce said the stop work order was issued on 265
October 6, 2017.  Councilor Duhaime noted that nothing was itemized.  Councilor Levesque 266
agreed that there was not enough of a breakdown of costs.  Councilor Ross said he did not 267
want to accept and suggested tabling or voting down the matter.  Councilor Winterton 268
questioned whether the Town Administrator, in fact, concurred with the staff 269
recommendation.  Dr. Shankle said he did not concur and, further, he would not sign off on 270
this size a Change Order before bringing it before the Council.  He said the contractor kept 271
working without anyone approving the work.272

273
Chairman Sulllivan moved, second by Councilor Winterton, to table the matter.  Motion 274
passed unanimously, 9-0.275

276
15.b    Rte. 3A & Hackett Hill Road Roundabout Update277

278
Dr. Shankle reported that, as requested by the Council, he contacted elected officials to 279
expedite approval of the Hackett Hill Roundabout work.  Executive Councilor Pappas and 280
State Representative Leavitt responded that they would look into it.  281

282
16.    NEW BUSINESS283

284
16.a    Post-Issuance Tax Compliance Policy and Procedures for Tax-Exempt Obligations 285

286
Finance Director, Christine Soucie, said this policy is needed to determine compliance with 287
the requirements of the Internal Revenue Code regarding bond issuers (the town) having 288
adopted written procedures focused on maintaining compliance with code provisions 289
applicable to tax exempt bonds and notes.  Director Soucie said the policy has been 290
reviewed by the town’s bond counsel and the financial auditor Matt Angell.291

292
Councilor Duhaime moved, second by Councilor Tsantoulis, to approve the Post-Issuance 293
Tax Compliance Policies and Procedures for Tax Exempt Obligations and to include it in the 294
town’s administrative code.  Motion passed unanimously, 9-0.295

296
16.b    15 Cross Road, LLC - Memorandum of Agreement for subdivision improvements at 15 297
Cross Road Tax Map 17, Lot 37298
SR 15 Cross Road.docx299
MOU Cross Road.12.04.17.CLEAN.DOCX300

301 10



TC Draft Minutes 050918-U 7

Councilor Duhaime moved, second by Councilor Tsantoulis, to have the Chairman sign the 302
Memorandum of Agreement with 15 Cross Road, LLC, where the town will provide the bond 303
proceeds to 15 Cross Road LLC and they will complete the subdivision improvements at 15 304
Cross Road Tax Map 17, Lot 37.305

306
Dr. Shankle indicated that this was developed in 2007 and took a bond for completion.  The 307
original developers sold the property unfinished and the only way to get the work finished is 308
to call the bond and provide money to the new owners.  Councilor Ross pointed out that the 309
intent of securing these bonds with the developer is to make sure they finish the job; since 310
they didn’t finish, they are technically forfeiting the bond.  He suggested having the job 311
finished then releasing the bond to them.  He said that would be the proper order.  Finance 312
Director Soucie said this is an agreement with the new owners so that they can finish the 313
project; they don’t get money until the project is completed.  Councilors Duhaime and 314
Tsantoulis agreed to amend the motion to read “to have the Chairman sign the Memorandum 315
of Agreement with 15 Cross Road LLC where the town will provide the bond proceeds to 15 316
Cross Road LLC after they complete the subdivision improvements at 15 Cross Road, Tax 317
Map 17, Lot 37.  Motion passed unanimously, 9-0.  318

319
16.c    2018 Paving Bids320
Staff Report - 2018 Road Paving Bids.docx321
2018 Advanced Paving Bid.pdf322
2018 GMI Asphalt Paving Bid.pdf323
2018 Brox Paving Bid.pdf324
2018 Pike Paving Bid.pdf325

326
DPW Director, Diane Boyce, presented four bids to do work on various roads in town.  She 327
said $428,000 will be encumbered from this year’s budget and will receive another $600,000 328
as budgeted in July.  Councilor Tsantoulis moved, second by Councilor Ross, to approve the 329
bid from the lowest bidder, GMI Asphalt, for the amount of $629,015.  Roll Call #2: Councilor 330
Duhaime-yes, Councilor Durand-yes, Councilor Ross-yes, Councilor Levesque-yes, 331
Councilor Walczyk-yes, Councilor Giotas-yes, Councilor Winterton-yes, Councilor Tsantoulis-332
yes, Chairman Sullivan-yes.  Motion passed unanimously, 9-0.333

334
16.d    Comcast Renewal335
Comcast Letter 041018.pdf336

337
The Council packet included a “commencement of renewal process” with Comcast.  Dr. 338
Shankle suggested the establishment of a small subcommittee of the Council.  Chairman 339
Sullivan said the subcommittee could be appointed in July.  Dr. Shankle will inform Brian 340
Christensen of the Council’s intent.341

342
16.e    Hooksett Shuttle Program - Status Update and Proposed Rider Criteria Changes343
staff report - shuttle program.docx344

345
Project Coordinator, Nick Germain, provided a detailed staff report regarding the Hooksett 346
Shuttle Program.  He said the Manchester Transit Authority has proposed to change ridership 347
criteria.  Staff recommends that Hooksett implement provisional rule changes that are 348
comparatively less radical than that proposed by the Manchester Transit Authority; that is, for 349
one day each week (Tuesday or Thursday), restrict the transportation to Hooksett-350
Manchester and medical appointments to Bedford and Concord.  Allow staff time to collect 351 11



TC Draft Minutes 050918-U 8

data, monitor the situation, and provide a more comprehensive report and possible 352
permanent rule changes at the net workshop.  This service is provided at no charge to riders.353

354
Councilor Ross moved, second by Councilor Winterton, to approve temporary changes to the 355
Hooksett Shuttle Program and consider approving the implementation of more stringent 356
ridership rules at the Council’s workshop.  Motion passed unanimously, 9-0.357

358
16.f    Approval of a Town Newsletter - Spring Tax Bill Insert359
Staff_Report_-__Tax_Bill_Newsletter.docx360

361
Councilor Tsantoulis moved, second by Councilor Levesque, to approve the newsletter, as 362
presented, that will be included in the tax bill mailing.  Motion passed unanimously, 9-0.363

364
16.g    Fire Chief Employment Contract Amendment – To Be Discussed in Non-Public Session365
FIRE CHIEF BURKUSH CONTRACT AMEND 042617.pdf366

367
17.    SUB-COMMITTEE REPORTS368

369
Councilor Tsantoulis said the Hooksett Youth Achievers Committee met tonight.370

371
Councilor Giotas said neither Heritage Commission or Transfer Committee met.372

373
Councilor Levesque said the Zoning Board of Adjustments met last night.  They considered 374
quite a few items.  The owner of a proposed bed and breakfast had no paperwork so the 375
matter was continued to next month.  The owner of the GM real state wants to lease out the 376
whole building to a body shop.  There was a big turnout by abutters; very negative.  The 377
matter was put to a vote; Councilor Duhaime recused.  Motion failed.  Dr. Shankle suggested 378
that if there is an appeal, the Board ought to listen to the appeal rather than deny it especially 379
since there was no minute taker and the recording turned off prior to the end of the 380
discussion.  Matt Lavoie took minutes.381

382
Councilor Ross said the Conservation Commission will meet next week.383

384
Councilor Winterton said they continue negotiations with the Fire Union.  The Sewer 385
Commission met on Monday.  They’ve contracted with Stantec who is doing drillings across 386
the river to see what is under the river.  He said the Planning Board had a quick meeting; had 387
one approval of a waiver.388

389
Chairman Sulllivan said the Old Town Hall Committee is looking to conduct an engineering 390
analysis.  Hall will be opened on May 20th for Heritage Day where there will be a 190th391
birthday celebration.392

393
A new Union Leader correspondent was recognized.  He came forward and introduced 394
himself, Travis Morin, indicating that he just started two weeks ago; his first story was the K9 395
story.396

397
18.    PUBLIC INPUT398

399
19.    NON-PUBLIC SESSION400

401 12



TC Draft Minutes 050918-U 9

19.a    NH RSA 91-A:3 II (a) The dismissal, promotion, or compensation of any public employee 402
or the disciplining of such employee, or the investigation of any charges against him or her.403

404
19.b    NH RSA 91-A:3 II (b) The hiring of any person as a public employee.405

406
19.c    NH RSA 91-A:3 II (c) Matters which, if discussed in public, would likely affect adversely the 407
reputation of any person, other than a member of the public body itself.408

409
J. Sullivan motioned to enter non-public session of 05/09/18 at 9:00 pm. Seconded by T. 410
Tsantoulis.411

412
Roll Call413
J. Giotas – yes414
D. Ross – yes415
A. Walczyk – yes416
J. Durand – yes417
R. Duhaime – yes418
T. Tsantoulis – yes419
J. Levesque – yes420
D. Winterton - yes421
J. Sullivan - yes422
Vote unanimously in favor.423

424

J. Sullivan motioned to exit non-public session of 05/09/18 at 9:35pm. Seconded by T. 425
Tsantoulis.  Vote unanimously in favor.426

J. Sullivan motioned to seal the non-public minutes of 05/09/18. Seconded by D. Winterton.427
Vote unanimously in favor.428

429
430

PUBLIC SESSION CONTINUED AT 9:35pm431
D. Winterton motioned to amend Fire Chief James Burkush’s employment contract for a 2% 432
raise in base salary effective May 1, 2018 and to amend paragraphs 3 & 4 of his contract to 433
reflect this wage increase as appropriate. Seconded by D. Ross.  Vote unanimously in favor.434

435
20.    ADJOURNMENT436

437
D. Ross motioned to adjourn the public session of 05/09/18 at 9:37pm. Seconded by J. 438
Levesque.  Vote unanimously in favor.439

440
NOTE:  The town website may have attachments to these Town Council minutes for 441
documents referred to in the minutes, reading file materials, and/or ancillary documents that 442
the Town Council has signed as agent to expend as a result of the Council’s prior approval of 443
the documents.444

445
Respectfully submitted,446

447
448

Suzanne Beauchesne449
Recording Clerk 450 13



Staff Report
Title: Tax Lien Abatement

Date: 5/23/2018
Background Discussion of Issues
The property at 13 Carpenter Street had a mobile home on it as of 4/1/2015. Through probate 
a relative became owner of the home. A demo permit and the first issue tax bill were both 
issued on the same day 5/29/2015. The mobile home was removed 10/29/2015. Since the 
mobile home was there 4/1 is was taxable for the 2015 year. A second bill was issued.
A tax lien was executed 5/6/2016. The owner of the old mobile home lives in Massachusetts
where the tax bills were sent but never paid.
On 6/26/2016 a permit was issued for a new 70xI4 Mobile Home which was purchased
8/18/2016 by Theda Burgess. There are no actual closings on mobile homes so no title search
is done. Only a bill of sale is prepared. Because the taxes stay with the location the owner of 
the new mobile home is receiving tax lien notices on the old mobile home.

Recommendation (Including Suggested motion, if appropriate)
It would cost the Town more money in attorney fees to file a claim in small claims court than 
the amount of the lien.  The Board of Assessors recommends the Town Council abate the 2015 
tax lien in the amount of $430.30. 

Fiscal Impact
Abatement Impact: $430.30

Prepared By: Elayne Pierson, Assessing Dept
Town Administrator’s Recommendation

14



Note 2:

Note:

8/L8/2OL6
6/27 /2016

to/2s/2oLs
s/6/2016

LtlL6/2}ts
s/2s/2oL5
s/2s/201s

s/7 /2OL4

4/2s/2012
Ll20/2Ot2

1969

Timeline for property at 13 Carpenter Street

Owner

Owner
Owner
Owner
Owner
Owner
Owner

Owner

Old Mobile Home still there 4ltlz0ts.

New Mobile Home sold to Theda Burgess

Permit# 1-64-85 issued for new 7Oxt4 Mobile Home

Cynthia Kivlehan

Cynthia Kivlehan

Cynthia Kivlehan

Cynthia Kivlehan

Cynthia Kivlehan

Cynthia Kivlehan

Marion E. Thomas

Frederick N. Thomas

Marion E. Thomas

Frederick N. Thomas

Mobile Home Removed.

Tax Lien Executed 5/6/2016
2nd lssue 2015 Tax Bill

Lst lssue 2OL5 Tax Bill

Applied for Demo Permit

Ownership By Probate

Deceased

Deceased

Name added to Deed

Map 39 Lot 1-34

Bk 3526 Page 2694

Lien Total S+¡O.SO

SgSe.OO Plus interest 59.49

(Moving Trailer off Site)

20L2-0473

4l2s/201.8

15



16



Property Location: 13 CARPENTER STREET
Viqion IÐ:3593 Account #4358

MAP ID:39/ lt34l I
Bldg #:

Bldg Name:

Sec #: 1 of lCardlofl
State Use: 1031

Print Date: 0212012018 09246I of I

1

08117t20I6
07t2tn0ß
06n1n0ß
05t29t20r5

CO
AD
AD
DE

Issued 0 0
0
0
0

7 l5
l5
l5
09
56

Visit
Visit
Visit

l6A-r09
r6A-85

l5DM-04

X TO DECK Wi S FT LM
LM
CA
TH

X 14 MODILE
MOBILE U2009 Est- Owner

Review

SECTION
Acre C. sr.

F Code Price Factor FactIdx Notes- Use

ENT=O0

AP=ROOF LEAKS
RECHKFOR NE\ilHOME

YELLOW

7tr6t08 - No CHANGE
DEMO MOBILE HOME TO/29|I5

OOOUA
NBHD/ Name

Tntnl'

Year

CYNTHIA-
ATE OF FREDERICK N.

oFo

BURGESS, THEDA

13 CARPENTER STREET

HOOKSETT,NH 03106
{.dditional Owners:

Tvne Descrintion

Tvoe

I

Other ID: 00039 00001 00034
]UB-DTV
{ccotrNT#2 16087
WARD 6
PREC. CEN
TNVENTORY R YES O4l09/09
GISID: 3593

TNPN
Level

Amount

20t2-0473

Fs'eA-€

-{!?{4€{:.
/OUPAGE

I

I {ll Public

Amounl

SF

Code
oTl

tF.e

AC

15.12

08n 8/20r6
08/t7/2014I

SAL

Land Area AC Total

I

ASSOC PID#

Paved

a.În

0.9000

U
U

4

I
I

u/i

t

1.0000

Numher

0
0
0

SALE

Suburb¡n

1.00

,,4 mnunl

IA
1N

l/.c.

0.00

?ommenls

¿017
¿017

Yr
PR.EVIOUSAI

Total

RESIDNTL
RESIDNTL

Description
a

103r
lßr

54.r00

52,100
2,000

Assessed Value

Net Total Appraised Parcel Value

Appraised Bldg. Value (Card)

Appraised XF (B) Value (Bldg)
Appraised OB (L) Value (Bldg)
Appraised Land Value (Bldg)
Special Land Value

Total Appraised Pa¡cel Value
Valuation Method:
Exemptions

Adjustrnent:

APPRAISED VALAE SAMMARY

Thís signature acknowledges ø vÍsit by a Dúø Colledor or Assessor

1031
1031

Code

Vt

Totøl:

¿ulo
Yr

54,100

52,100
2,000

l03l
Cotle

Tvoe

IENT

o

0

Assesseã Vahtc

15

Assessed Value

ID

.00

¿ulf,
2015

Yr

54,100

52,100

0

2,000

0

0

54,100

C

0

0

13.61

l03l
1031

VISION

14,200
600

0

0

2I 15
HOOKSETT, NH

l03l HM-NO

Total Card Land

17



Property Locafìon: 13 CARPENTER STREET
Vísion ID:3593 Account#4358

MAP ID:391 ll34l I
Bldg #:

Bldg Name:
Sec#: I oÍ lCørdlolI

Stufe Ase:1031
P¡í nt D af e : 05 I l0 12018 I 4:0 41of I

Tll ll¡nce f ìv/f on<o Áton,

BAS
WDK

PAV3
SHDT

Code
&

Jtyle
Model

Srade

Itories
)ccupancy
Exte¡ior Wall l
Exterior'vVall 2
RoofSfucture
RoofCover
tnterior Wall I
hterior Wall 2
hterior Flr I
Interior Flr 2

Heat Fuel

Heat Type

AC Type
Total Bedrooms

Bthrms
Half Baths
Xba Fixts
Rooms
Style

Style
Adj

Element
fÔ,

First Floor
Decþ \ilood

¿0

J2

)3
t
I
¿6

D1

DI

D4

D6

l4
D2

04

0l
02

I
0

I
ù2

D2

007

cd.

lescriDtion

CIL

Mobile Home
Mobile Home
{,verage

I Story

A,luminum Sidng

Fl¿t
MeteVTin
Plywood Panel

Inlaid Sht Gds

Carpet
oil
Forced Air-Duc
None
2 Bedrooms

4 Rooms
Average
Average

Description

Sub DescriDt

sllì

980
0

Livinç Area
IUB:AREA SUMùIARY S ECTION

L
L

t

120

Units
s00.00
8.00

Price

{dj. Base Rate:

Replace Cost
q.YB

EYB
Dep Code
Remodel Rating
Yea¡ Remodeled
DepYo
Functional Obslnc
Extemal Obslnc
Cost Trend Factor
Condition
% Complete
ûverall % Cond
Apprais Val
Dep%Ow
Dep OwCommenl
Misc Imp Ovr
Misc Imp OwComment
Cost to Cure Ovr
Cost to Cure Ovr Comment

l03l
Code

MDGDUSE

Element

t-105

9E0
t2s

(iross t rcn

¿016
¿0r6

Yr

I{OBILE HM-NO LAND
Descrinfion

993

980
l3

Gde

cd.

)

Dn Rt

ch.

60.07
6.25

Unit Cost

Cnd

Description

,0.07

;9,64E
¿016

¡015
\

¡

,7
t7900
D

D

D

100
100

o/"Cru

100

s9^648

58,867
781

Undenrec, Valrc

1,000
1,000

Anr Vahte

brl'l
f'tlto

Y.Òv
D

Êrû

l0
1

't0

18



c@äÐv
TOWN OF HOOKSETT

BU ILDING PËRMIT APPLICATION
RESIDENTIAL _ 1 & 2 FAMILY DWELLINGS

PROPERry INFORMATION

Water Manchester Water Works n Water Works Village WaterWorks

E Private Well

Property Owner: ¡"¿ ,l,í{lt,rå Ll t,li n l.(t t/\
Building Permit No.: i5 bi\r\* O 4

F..^o 's+Street Address: 1a r>oÑ\f Q.f ø^ /¡,1ì K . < 3c/ )
Applicant: Phone Number:

Parcel Number Map: Lot: Zoning:

Type of Work: D New Construction E Addition E Alteration E Repair/Replacement

-ÆÌ./Öemol¡tion E Relocation I Foundation Only fJ Other

Description of Work (See Attacted Plans)

Building Area: 

- 

X 

- 

Total 

- 

Sl- Total Project Valuation: $

tr c f,l^Town Sewer

CONTRACTORS INFORMATION
NAME ADDRESS PHONE NUMBER

General Contractor

Architect/Engineer

Mechanical

Plumber

Efectrician

Septic/Sewer I nstaller

CERTIFICATION
The undersigned hereby agrees that the proposed work shall be done in accordance with the statements on this permit, and with the
plans and specifications submitted, and that the work connected therewith shall conform to the building code, zoning ordinances and
regulations of the Town of Hooksett. lt is the responsibility of the applicant, contractor and/or owner to notify the Building lnspector
when foundation, frame, chimneys, electrical wiring, plumbing, insulation, etc. and final completion are ready for inspection. The
undersigned agrees property will be by an Assessing Official.

Owner's
(lf not signed, the undersigned certifies he is authorized to apply for this permit.)

Date

Contractor's Signature

Other Requirements
. One ('l) set of construction plans ('l 't X 17 for new construction) and a plot plan.

. Electrical and plumbing applications must be filed separately by the licensed professional in the Building Office.
r Fuel tanks, oil and gas line permits must be obtained from the Fire Department.
r Driveway permit must be obtained from Department of Public Works before installation.
. A certified footing location survey is required to þe submitted for all new construction before installing foundation walls

Date

APPROVED BY:
Matthew Lavoie, Code Enforcement Officer Date

19



Town of Hooksett Real Estate Tax Bill
35 Main Street, Hooksett, NH 03106

L?..OO%APR lnterest Charged After
First Bill

L2%tf id after0014405 - 00435820L5

NTER STREET

DUE DATEINTEREST RATEBIITING DATEACCOUNT NUMBERTAX YEAR

rocATtoNMAP/PARCEL

TAX CATCUTATIONOWNER OF RECORD

AREA

,rrtl¡t¡h¡l¡¡ll¡,1¡,1¡r¡¡l¡,ll¡hll"rll¡,r¡llhtllllll,ll'tllll
5655 31 30 PRSRT FIRSTCLASS ******t{****r*üAUTOü*MIXED AADC030

CYNTHIA KIVLEHAN

27 BURNAP ST

WTLM|NGTON MA 01887-3713

Municipal
School
State
County

Buildings 14,800

TOTA[: 24.83 NET VALUE: 14,800

To Pay> 183.36

Payments may be made online at

www.hooksett.org

MunicipalTax Amount
School Tax Amount
State Tax Amount
County Tax Amount

Total Tax

Estimated Tax Amt
Paid to Date

96.19
191,19
34,98
45.64

368.00

184.00
-0.64

6.49
12.90

2.36

3.08

ASSESSED VATUATION2015 TAX RATE PER S1OOO

THE TOWN DOES NOT ACCEPT POST DATED CHECKS.

PER RSA 80:56 CHECKS RETURNED BY THE BANK FOR ANY REASON ARE

SUBJECTTO A S25.OO FEE, PLUS PENALTIES AND INTEREST.

TAX BILLS ARE SENT TO THE MOST CURRENT OWNER AS REPORTED TO

THE TOWN OF HOOKSETT BY THE MERRIMACK COUNW REGISTRY OF

DEEDS. WE REGRET THAT WE CANNOT ASSUME RESPONSIBILITY FOR

THE TIMELINESS OF THIS INFORMATION.

PLEASE USE THE CORRECT 9-1.1 ADDRESS AS INDICATED ON THIS BILL.

WE ARE NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR MIS-APPLIED PAYMENTS SENT TO US

WITH INCORRECT ADDRESS/AND/OR MAP AND LOT NUMBER

REFERENCES. TO ENSURE ACCURACY, RETURN BOTTOM PORTION OF

BILL WITH PAYMENT.

RECEIPTS WILL BE PROVIDED TO TAXPAYERS WHO RETURN BOTH

PORTIONS OF THE BILL WITH A STAMPED SELF.ADDRESSED RETURN

ENVELOPE.

MAKE CHECKS PAYABLE TO THE TOWN OF HOOKSETT.

CREDIT CARDS ARE NOW ACCEPTED IN THE TAX OFFICE WITH 2.95%

CONVENIÉNCE FEE.

TAXPAYERS HAVE THE RIGHT TO APPLY IN WRITING, BEFORE MARCH 1

BEFORE THE YEAR FOLLOWING THE MAILING OF THE SECOND-ISSUE

(DECEMBER)TAX BILI- FOR AN ABATEMENT OF THE ASSESSED TAX AS

PROVIDED UNDER RSA 76:16'

IF YOU ARE ELDERLY, DISABLED, BLIND, A VETERAN OR VETERAN,S

SPOUSE, OR ARE UNABLE TO PAY TAXES DUE TO POVERTY OR OTHER

GOOD CAUSE, YOU MAY BE ELIGIBLE FOR A TAX EXEMPTION, CREDIT,

ABATEMENT OR DEFERRAL. FOR DETAILS AND APPLICATION, CONTACT

THE ASSESSING OFFICE AT 268.0003.

TAXPAYERS REQUI RING INFORMATION ABOUT ASSESSMENTS,

OWNERSHIP CHANGES, OR CHANGES IN MAILING ADDRESS, SHOULD

CONTACT THE A5SESSING OFFICE AT 268.0003.

THIS BILL LISTS CURRENT-YEAR INFORMATION ONLY. LIEN REFERENCES

DO NOT INCLUDE INTEREST. FOR PAYOFF AMOUNTS ON PROPERTY TAX

LIENS, CONTACT THE TAX COLLECTOR,S OFFICE AT 485-9534.

FOR QUESTIONS ABOUT TAXES OR INTEREST, CONTACT THE TAX

coLLECTOR'S OFFICE AT 485-9534.

INFORMATION TO TAXPAYERS PAYMENT POLIC¡ES

Town of Hooksett Real Estate Tax Bill
35 Main street' Hooksett' NH 03106 

tz.oo%ApR rnterest charged After
First Bill

TOCATION OF PROPERTYMAP/PARCEL

CURRENT AMOUNT DUE
BILTING DATEACCOUNT NUMBERTAX YEAR

7 15

20L5

0039-0001-0034

CYNTHIA KIVLEHAN

27 BURNAP ST

WILMINGTON MA 01887.3713

001440s - 0043s8 15

<Amount to PaY> 183.36
13 CARPENTER STREET

MONDAY - FRIDAY

8:00 AM TO 4¡30 PM

PHONE: (603) 48s-9534

TAX COLLECTOR,S OFFICE HOURS

FoR REcEtpT: RETURN ENTTRE Bttt WITH YoUR PAYMENT AND A sEtF-ADDRESSED, STAMPED RETURN ENvEtoPE'

20



Town of Hooksett Real Estate Tax Bill
35 Main Street, Hooksett, NH 03106

Second Bill

ttlrlIr,¡l,t¡,,lll,,,,ll,l¡llllllht¡lililtl,lllhlltllhl¡'illl
5665 31 30 PRSRTFIRSTCLASS tt*****t*******AUTo**MlxEDAADC030

CYNTHIA KIVLEHAN

27 EURNAP ST

WILMINGTON MA 01887.3713

L2.00% APR lnterest Charged After

Municipal Tax Amount
School Tax Amount
State Tax Amount
County Tax Amount

Total Tax

Actual Tax Amount
Paid to Date

lnterest Due

89.43
191.59

37.16
47.82

366.00

366.00
-o.64

10.13
Municipal
School

State

County

6.04
12.94

2.5L
3.23

Buildings 14,800

TOTAI.: 24.72 NET VAIUE: 14,800

Second Bill

2015 0014405 - 004358

0039-0001-0034 13 CARPENTER STREET

CYNTHIA KIVLEHAN

27 BURNAP 5T

WILMINGTON MA 01887-3713

Town of Hooksett Real Estate Tax Bill

L?,f,rï% APR lnterest Charged After
35 Main Street, Hooksett, NH 03106

nt To PaY> 375.49

Payments may be made online at

www.hooksett.org

1

<Amount to PaY> 375.49

MONDAY - FRIDAY

8:00 AM TO 4:30 PM

PHoNE: (6031 485-9s34

L2% ú id after0014405 - 00435820L5

13 CARPENTER0039-0001-0034
TAX CATCUTATIONOWNER OF RECORD

tocATloNMAP/PARCEt AREA

DUE DATEINTEREST RATEBIIIING DATEACCOUNT NUMBERTAX YEAR

ASSESSED VALUATION2015 TAX RATE PER S1OOO

THE TOWN DOES NOT ACCEPT POST DATED CHECKS.

PER RSA 80:56 CHECKS RETURNED BY THE BANK FOR ANY REASON ARE

SUBJECTTO A S25.OO FEE, PLUS PENALTIES AND INTEREST.

TAX BILI-S ARE SENT TO THE MOST CURRENT OWNER A5 REPORTED TO

THE TOWN OF HOOKSETT BY THE MERRIMACK COUNTY REGISTRY OF

DEEDS. WE REGRET THAT WE CANNOT ASSUME RESPONSIBILITY IOR

THE TIMELINESS OF THIS INIORMATION.

PLEASE USE THE CORRECT 9-1.1 ADDRESS AS INDICATED ON THIS BILL.

WE ARE NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR MIS-APPLIED PAYMENTS SENT TO US

WITH INCORRECT ADDRESS/AND/OR MAP AND LOT NUMBER

REFERENCES. TO ENSURE ACCURACY, RETURN BOTTOM PORTION OF

BILL WITH PAYMENT.

RECEIPTS WILL BE PROVIDED TO TAXPAYERS WHO RETURN BOTH

PORTIONS OF THE BILL WITH A STAMPED SELF.ADDRESSED RETURN

ENVELOPE.

MAKE CHECKS PAYABLE TO THE TOWN OF HOOKSETT.

cREDrr cARDs ARE Now acie pr¡o lN THE TAx oFFlcE wlrn 2.95%

CONVENIENCE FEE.

TAXPAYERS HAVE THE RIGHTTO APPLY IN WRITING, BEFORE MARCH 1

BEFORE THE YEAR FOLLOWING THE MAILING OF THE SECOND-ISSUE

{DECEMBER) TAX BILL, FOR AN ABATEMENT OF THE ASSESSED TAX AS

PROVIDED UNDER RSA 76:16.

IF YOU ARE ELDERLY, DISABLED, 8LIND, A VETERAN OR VETERAN,S

SPOUSE, OR ARE UNABTE TO PAY TAXES DUE TO POVERTY OR OTHER

GOOD CAUSE, YOU MAY BE ELIGIBLE FOR A TAX TXEMPTION, CREDII

ABATEMENT OR DEFERRAL. FOR DETAILS AND APPLICATION, CONTACT

THE ASSESSING OFFICE AT 268-0003,

TAXPAYERS REQUIRING IN FORMATION ABOUT ASSESSMENTS,

OWNERSHIP CHANGES, OR CHANGES IN MAILING ADDRESS, SHOULD

CONTACT THE ASSESSING OFFICE AT 268.0003.

THIS BILL LISTS CURRENT.YEAR INFORMATION ONLY. LIEN REFERENCES

DO NOT INCLUDE INTEREST. FOR PAYOFF AMOUNTS ON PROPERTY TAX

LIENS, CONTACT THE TAX COLLECTOR,S OFFICE AT 485.9534.

FOR QUESTIONS ABOUTTAXES OR INTEREST, CONTACT THE TAX

coLLECTOR's oFFlcE AT 485-9s34.

ST

PAYMENT POLICIES]NFORMATION TO TAXPAYERS

LOCATION OF PROPERTYMAP/PARCEL

CURRENT AMOUNT DUE
BILLING DATEACCOUNT NUMBERTAX YEAR

TAX COLLECTOR'S OFFICE HOURS

FOR RECEIPT: RETURN ENTIRE BILL WITH YOUR PAYMENT AND A SELF.ADDRESSED, STAMPED RETURN ENVELOPE'

21



201600007579 Rccordcd in Mcrrimack county, NH In thc Rccords of Kathi L. Guay,cPo, Rcgistcr

BK: 3514 PG: 1610, 5ltll2ûL610:47 AM INDEX $16'00

x*Rer*r^flç çou.¡ïy RËctnoa @ gt $'æ"i ÊrgÉø*

REpORT OF COLLECTOR'S EXECUTION OF REAL ESTATE TAX LIEN

Pase# z1 qt 3Loate 05/06/L6

/ citv/Town of : Hooksett
pi;¿'.'õi:"eià.rtl ðñ : nooksett Muni ci pal suì I di ng
oatè of execution : MaY 6, 201-6
Year of t-evy : 2015

r" ==:========= ================ ================ ================

Lien Amounts
oh/ner or Person taxed and

Description of Real Estate

KELLY REV TRUST 1993, loHN M.

L/B L3L7
0025-002

KEYLAND PROPERTIES. LLC
' 

,,:r"''

L/B 4L2 I^,EST RIVER ROAD

00L3-0001-

KEYLAND PROPERTIES LLC

L/O 41,L htEST RIVER ROAD
0013-0002

Taxes
Interest
Fees/Costs
Lien Total

L46.43
0. s3

37 .75
L84.7L

TAXES
Interest
Fees/costs
t-i en Total

9, 186.00
683.64

37.75
9, 907. 39

Taxes
Interest
Fees/Costs
uien Total

433.00
32.20
10. 00

475.20

KHAN, MAMOON R.
GUL, SHUMAILA
L/B L3 STIRLING AVENUE
oo19-001L-0009

TAXES
Interest
rees/Costs
Lien Total

L56.43
3.65

37 .75
1_97. 83

KIVLEHAN, CYNTHIA

B/O L3 CARPENTER STREET
0039-0001--0034

Taxes
Intenest
Fees/Costs
Lien Total

365.36
27.L9
37 .7s

430. 30

KOUSTAS, KOSMAS N.

B/O L465 HOOKSETT ROAD 1-41
0018-0049-0141

TAXES
Interest
Fees/costs
li en rotal

2,438.3L
98.00
37 .75

2,574.06

KULIGA, STANLEY
KULIGA, HELEN N.
L/B 7 ORCHARD DRIVE
00L6-0028

TAXES
Interest
Fees/Costs
Lien Total

1, 3 30. 00
62.09
37.75

L,429.84

LABTB, SUZY Taxes
Interest
Fees/Costs
t-i en Total

1, L52 . 50
61.89
37.75

L,252.L4B/o
00

5 EMBASSY AVENUE
39-0001-0007

22



35 Maìn street
Hooksett, NH 03106

(603) 48s-9s34

L6OB7 THEYDA BURGESS
1-3 CARPENTER STREET
HOOKSETT, NH 031-06

unpa-id tax ljens:
TAX LTEN DESCRIPTION AND YEAR

NOTTCE OF TAX DELINQUENCTES AND UNREDEEMED TAX LIENS

STATEMENT DATE
02/1,4/L8
PAGE# ].

B/O 13 CARPENTER STREET
SERTAL# 4358
MAP/BLK 0039-0001--
Lor/PG# 0034

<<TMPORTANT: TF YOU ARE IN BANKRUPTCY, TURN OVER FOR MORE TNFORMATION>>

Rccording to my records the following tax accounts remain unpaìd:

TAX LTEN
DUE

TAX LIEN
DATE

PENALTY OR
INTEREST RATETNV#

Z1LS rax Ljen 268767 430.30't 05/07/L6 L8.00% PER YR

:'i rf full redemption of the outstandìng 2015 tax lien due amount for
the 201-5 iãi ievy; i ncl ud'ing statuto-ry. i nterest,. cost accrued
itrere õñ an¿ sub-séquent tax payments,- is not. made by May 23' 2018
a tax deed will be'issued to'the holder of the lien pursuant to
RSA BO:38 OT NSA 80:76.

Pl ease Contact the
computatjon and/or
see-other side for

Tax Office for the correct interest
cost prior to the final. payment- Please
more information. Thank yôu tax offjce

.rax col I ector: Ki mber'l y a gl i chmann

23



Z0t600¡t4g42 Recorded in Merrimack Countv, NH In rhe Records of Kaúhi L. Guay,CPO, Registcr ó Oó - 
"7. 

P35
BK:3526PG:2694,8ll8l20l68:24AMLCHIP$25.00RECoRDINGS10.00sURcHARGES2.00ffi

r*Fqlrue* courrrry REco^DÊ #* ú#þ *", Êcst¡ir¡

6van\¿*
,lo6l

WARRANTY DEED

úas1 ,/ot{"?
a

c{C
KNOW ALL PERSONS that by these presents that Burgess Moblile Homes lnc.,

a New Hampshire Corporation, with an address of 1180 D.W. Highway No. Hooksett,

New hampshire, for consideration paid grants to Theyda Burgess, of 13 Carpenter St.
Hooksett NH 03106.w¡th WARRANTY COVENANTS, the following

2017 Ïtan Model PINNACLE # pn829 Serial # QfO22679

W¡dth '13'6" Lengrth 66

Date or Manracrure 0&06-16 1A Y 14 Ll H

Located at 13 Carpenter St. Hooksett NH /b 4 -_86

8-t7-tc5
¡95o6b -/

G
\

\

\,\
\ l.-

\-

Roger and Bonnie Burgess , owners of the Lract or parcel of land up
desøibied manfactured hoúsingis situated in town of liooksett State of
consents to the conveyance of the above described housing

n
í-O

¿t.tuy

This conveyance is an initialsale of manufactured housing in stock and tade and is

exempt from the real estate transfer tax pursant to RSA 78-B:41V (a)

DATED this---l5b-day
State of New Hampshire

Burgess Mobile

6

County of Merrirnûc K
defore me,'ih¡ê:À day of :1u94*-201o,personally appeared, Roger Burgebs

who acknowledged the forgoing to be'his voluntary act and deed.

My

I

JEllillfE8 [ gßAF

ilot¡rï Pa¡bflc, I'lcw H¡mpshlr8

uy Coi¡ni'lsslon Erol¡a¡ Aue 26, 2020

By

24



Staff Report
Title: K9 Program Donation

Date: 5/23/18
Background Discussion of Issues
Monique Cote-Melendez of Hooksett, would like to donate $2,500.00 to the Hooksett Police 
Department.  Mrs. Cote-Melendez requests the money be used to help fund the K9 Program.

Recommendation (Including Suggested motion, if appropriate)
Motion to accept the donation of $2,500.00 from Monique Cote-Melendez, to the Town of 
Hooksett for the Hooksett Police Department K9 program per RSA 31:95-b,III (b) and return 
that amount to the Police Departments budget, Donation line.

Fiscal Impact
None

Prepared By: Captain Jake Robie
Town Administrator’s Recommendation

25



Staff Report
Create a Trust Fund for K-9 Program for the Police Department

May 23, 2018
Background Discussion of Issues

Per RSA 31:19 Towns are allowed to hold in trust gifts that are for any public purpose that is 
not foreign to their institution or incompatible with the objects of their organization.  The 
Council can create the trust and should appoint an agent to expend any funds in the trust for 
the purposes of the trust.  Trusts are held with the Trustees of the Trust Funds, and will not be 
commingled with public funds (tax dollars).  Annual accounting and report of activities of the 
trust shall be presented and published in the annual report.  When the trust is on longer 
needed Council can close it and the monies in the trust are returned to the Treasurer. 

Recommendation (Including Suggested motion, if appropriate)

Motion to establish a trust fund under RSA 31:19 for the purpose of a K-9 Program for the 
Police Department and to name the Town Administrator as the agent to expend.  

Fiscal Impact

Prepared By: Christine Soucie, Finance Director
Town Administrator’s Recommendation

26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



Staff Report
Title: Application for Pawnbroker/Secondhand Dealer License

Date: 05/23/2018
Background Discussion of Issues
Carl Branco, owner of DeRosa of Boston Jewelers, LLC, has submitted application for a 
Pawnbroker/Secondhand Dealer license for a location at 1261 Hooksett Road, Unit 3. As part of 
the application process required by Hooksett Ordinance 2014-1, Captain Jake Robie of Hooksett 
Police Department has completed a review of the application, criminal history record, lease 
agreement and proof of subscription to Leads Online. The attached letter indicates Captain 
Robie has found all requirements to be in order.
Application and all supporting documents are attached.

Recommendation (Including Suggested motion, if appropriate)
Town Council motion to approve DeRosa of Boston Jewelers, LLC, application for 
pawnbroker/secondhand dealer license for a business located at 1261 Hooksett Road, Unit 3, 
and for a permit to be issued immediately upon receipt by Town Clerk of $250.00 permit fee.

Fiscal Impact
None

Prepared By: Todd Rainier, Town Clerk
Town Administrator’s Recommendation

53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



Staff Report
Title:Radio purchase for rescue boat

Date: 5/23/2018
Background Discussion of Issues
The new Fire –Rescue boat was purchased using impact fees. 
We are requesting using impact fees for an interoperability radio.
State bid price, $4479.85

Recommendation (Including Suggested motion, if appropriate)
Motion to approve $4479.85 from fire impact fees for an interopbility radio.

Fiscal Impact
Impact fees

Prepared By: James Burkush 
Town Administrator’s Recommendation

68



Bill To

Hooksett Fire Dept
15 Legends Drive
Hooksett, NH 03106

Quote QTE010730

4/20/2018

Description

Ship To

Hooksett Fire Department
Attn: Chief James Burkush
15 Legends Drive
Hooksett, NH 03106

Date

Page 1 of 1

Item Number

HOO420 Net 30

Customer No. Salesperson Shipping Method Payment Terms

Unit Price Ext Price

Brian Vastine INSTALL

Item Quantity

2425BAN2AKCFA98 Mobile, VM900, V/7/8, VCH Single, P25T, MDC1200  3,619.00  3,619.00 1.00 1

2990600013 Warranty, 2 Yr Extended (Starts after 3 Yr)  66.50  66.50 1.00 2

AN000131A01 Antenna, All Band V/U/7/8, 17" Cable, QMA  105.00  105.00 1.00 3

EM-MTR11001-195 Cable, NMO Thick Mount, 17' RG195 Low Loss No Conn.  40.50  40.50 1.00 4

CPN1 Connector N Male Crimp RG58 (24656)  9.85  9.85 1.00 5

EB30-TK7-1P Bracket, Equipment Mtg, 3" TK*90/TK5*10 Series  29.00  29.00 1.00 6

PROGRAMMING Programming - (1) VM900 V/7/8 mobile  100.00  100.00 1.00 7

MISC- Wire, wire ties, fuses, fuse holders, loom, etc.  30.00  30.00 1.00 8

LABOR LABOR  330.00  330.00 1.00 9

Install a new remote mount multi-band mobile 
into a boat.

SCZ-3 Service Call Zone 3  150.00  150.00 1.00 10

PRICE QUOTE GOOD FOR 30 DAYS
DELIVERY: 30 DAYS ARO
TERMS: NET 30 DAYS
FOB

Subtotal

Freight

Total

Ossipee Mountain Electronics, Inc.  PO Box 950 832  Whittier Highway  Moultonboro, NH 03254 
TEL: (603) 476-5581      Toll Free: (800) 639-5081     Fax: (603) 476-5587

www.omesbs.com

 4,479.85

 0.00

 4,479.85

Additional Discount  0.00

Quoted By: Accepted By: Date:

69



Staff Report
Title: Street Name Approval

Date: 5/23/18
Background Discussion of Issues
The Hooksett Village Water Department is placing a new water storage tank off of Hackett Hill 
Road.  The road to the tank needs to be named in order for the plan to be complete.  The 
following names were proposed:  Brickyard Pond Rd., Scale House Road, Fault Street, Rock 
Road or Ledge Road, Aggregate Ave.  It was unanimously decided by Police, Fire and DPW to 
go with Brickyard Pond Rd.

Recommendation (Including Suggested motion, if appropriate)
I recommend that the Council approve the new Hooksett Village water storage tank road be 
named Brickyard Pond Rd.

Fiscal Impact
0

Prepared By: Diane Boyce
Town Administrator’s Recommendation

70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



Staff Report
Title: Town Council Meeting Schedule 2018-2019

Date: 05/23/2018
Background Discussion of Issues
The Town Council meeting schedule is based on the fiscal year with meetings typically occurring on the 2nd and 4th

Wednesdays of each month at 6:00pm in Town Hall Chambers.  Exceptions to this schedule occur in November 
and December due to the holidays, and additional meetings occur in February & September due to budgets & 
warrants.  The Council also conducts an annual workshop in the Summer. Other Special Meetings may occur at the 
request of the Council Chair throughout the year.

Recommended changes to the 2018-2019 Town Council Meeting Schedule:
 July 25th – annual workshop, remove this date from meeting calendar and move workshop to August 8th

(have only one meeting on July 11th then have a Council Summer break)
 November 14th – remove this date from meeting calendar (Administration attends a 2-day annual NHMA 

conference)
 February 27th & April 24th – these Council meetings are during school vacation week; discussion on 

quorum with new Council 

Recommendation (Including Suggested motion, if appropriate)
Council motion to approve the Town Council meeting schedule for July 2018-June 2019 as 
presented.

Fiscal Impact
None.

Prepared By: Donna Fitzpatrick, Administrative Services Coordinator
Town Administrator’s Recommendation

83



DRAFT
TOWN COUNCIL MEETING SCHEDULE @ 6:00 pm

July 2018 – June 2019

*REMOVE DATES?

July 11, 2018 Regular Meeting Council Chambers

*July 25, 2018 Regular Meeting Council Chambers

August 8, 2018 Workshop Council Chambers

August 22, 2018 Regular Meeting Council Chambers

September 5, 2018 Budget Review Council Chambers

September 12, 2018 Regular Meeting Council Chambers

September 19, 2018 Budget Review Council Chambers

September 26, 2018 Regular Meeting Council Chambers

October 10, 2018 Regular Meeting Council Chambers

October 24, 2018 Regular Meeting Council Chambers

November 7, 2018 Regular Meeting Council Chambers

*November 14, 2018 Regular Meeting Council Chambers

December 12, 2018 Regular Meeting Council Chambers

January 9, 2019 Regular Meeting Council Chambers

January 23, 2019 Regular Meeting Council Chambers

February 2, 2019 Town Meeting Cawley School 9:00am

February 2, 2019 Special Meeting Cawley School –

immediately following Town Meeting

February 13, 2019 Regular Meeting Council Chambers

*February 27, 2019 Regular Meeting Council Chambers

March 12, 2019 Town Election             Cawley School (6:00am-7:00pm)

March 13, 2019 Regular Meeting Council Chambers

March 27, 2019 Regular Meeting Council Chambers

April 10, 2019 Regular Meeting Council Chambers

*April 24, 2019 Regular Meeting Council Chambers

May 8, 2019 Regular Meeting Council Chambers

May 22, 2019 Regular Meeting Council Chambers

June 12, 2019 Regular Meeting Council Chambers

June 26, 2019 Regular Meeting Council Chambers

Meetings are subject to change with at least a week’s notice.   AS OF 05/03/18

84



Staff Report
Title: Classification Pay Plan Update

Date: 05/23/2018
Background Discussion of Issues
The Classification Pay Plan was last updated 05/10/17.  Updates to this plan are now needed to add 2% to the 
maximum levels of each grade.  This plan is for non-union employees of the Town of Hooksett.

On 02/13/13 the Town Council approved that from now on the maximum level amounts would automatically 
increase by the amount of any COLA or COLA-type increase.  Effective 07/01/18 there is a 2% full-time & part-
time COLA per warrant voted favorably on 03/13/18.

Recommendation (Including Suggested motion, if appropriate)
Council motion to approve updated Classification Pay Plan as presented for effective date 
07/01/18.

Fiscal Impact
$145,523.00 in wages; estimated tax impact $0.09

Prepared By: Donna Fitzpatrick, Administrative Services Coordinator
Town Administrator’s Recommendation

85



TOWN OF HOOKSETT
Classification Pay Plan 05/23/18 (effective 07/01/18)

MINIMUM MAXIMUM EXEMPT NON-EXEMPT

Call Firefighter 11.00$         21.85$          Non-Exempt
Custodian 22,880$       45,448$        Non-Exempt
Floor Custodian Non-Exempt
Scale Attendant Non-Exempt
Secretary 12.00$         24.33$          Non-Exempt
Administrative Fill-In 24,960$       50,606$        Non-Exempt
Recording Clerk Non-Exempt
Call Fire Lieutenant 12.17$         22.85$          Non-Exempt
Laborer 25,314$       47,528$        Non-Exempt
Call Captain 12.81$         24.06$          Non-Exempt

26,645$       50,045$        
Clerk 13.08$         24.56$          Non-Exempt

27,206$       51,085$        
Bookkeeper 13.58$         25.48$          Non-Exempt

28,246$       52,998$        
Clerk/Deputy Town Clerk 13.90$         26.09$          Non-Exempt
Truck Driver/Laborer 28,912$       54,267$        Non-Exempt
Call Fire District Chief 14.91$         27.99$          Non-Exempt

31,013$       58,219$        
Administrative Assistant 14.95$         28.07$          Non-Exempt
Assessing Clerk 31,096$       58,386$        Non-Exempt
Clerk/Deputy Tax Collector Non-Exempt
Police Administrative Clerk Non-Exempt
Police Prosecution Assistant Non-Exempt
Police Administrative Assistant/Receptionist Non-Exempt
Assistant Crew Chief 15.27$         28.67$          Non-Exempt
Heavy Equipment Operator/Truck Driver 31,762$       59,634$        Non-Exempt
Vacant 15.98$         30.01$          

33,238$       62,421$        
Real Estate Appraiser 16.76$         31.46$          Non-Exempt
Mechanic 34,861$       65,437$        Non-Exempt
Crew Chief 17.80$         33.42$          Non-Exempt
Master Mechanic 37,024$       69,514$        Non-Exempt
Forest Fire  Warden 18.75$         35.29$          Non-Exempt
Project Coordinator 39,000$       73,403$        Exempt
Administrative Services Coordinator Exempt
Assistant Planner Exempt
Police Executive Assistant Non-Exempt

Family Services Director 19.27$         36.27$          Non-Exempt
40,082$       75,442$        

Code Enforcement Officer 19.34$         36.31$          Exempt
Tax Collector 40,227$       75,525$        Exempt

20.00$         37.89$          Exempt
41,600$       78,811$        

Police Dispatch Supervisor *Non-Exempt (Salary)

Police Sergeant 21.45$         36.34$          Non-Exempt
44,616$       75,587$        

22.52$         42.28$          Exempt
Administrative Fire Captain 46,842$       87,942$        Non-Exempt
Police Lieutenant Patrol Officers *Non-Exempt (Salary)

Assessor 23.04$         43.25$          Exempt
Town Planner 47,923$       89,960$        
Vacant 23.43$         42.36$          Exempt

48,734$       88,109$        
23.27$         43.69$          Exempt

Finance Director 48,402$       90,875$        
Exempt

Assistant Fire Chief 25.19$         46.57$          Exempt
52,395$       96,866$        

Police Captain Operations Support Exempt
Police Prosecutor

1

15

14

13

12

23

22

17

21

20

19

18

16

STATUS

11

10

2

3

4

6

9

8

SALARY RANGE
CLASSIFICATIONGRADE

7

5

86



TOWN OF HOOKSETT
Classification Pay Plan 05/23/18 (effective 07/01/18)

27.02$         51.28$          Exempt
Assistant Public Works Director/Town Engineer 56,202$       106,662$      
Fire Chief 30.87$         54.93$          Exempt
Police Chief 64,210$       114,254$      
Public Works Director Exempt

Town Administrator 31.44$         71.67$          Exempt
65,395$       149,074$      

Annual minimum and maximum ranges apply to full-time non-union positions only and are based on a 40-hour work week

Hourly minimum and maximum rates apply to all non-union positions regardless of full-time, part-time, or other status.

Original adoption date:  March 24, 2010.  

Amendment date: May 23, 2018 for effective date July 1, 2018

*Refer to Hooksett Police Department Administrative/Operations Directive for Administering of Overtime for Lieutenant and Dispatch Supervisor.

The Classification Pay Plan does not include seasonal positions including but not limited to Public Works Fun-in-the-Sun, Family Services. 

25

24

02/13/13 Town Council approved that from now on the maximum level amounts would automatically increase by the amount of any COLA or COLA-type increases, but not merit increases.  07/01/13 Town 
Council approved 2% COLA.  07/01/14 2% COLA per budget voted 5/13/14. 07/01/15 3% COLA per budget voted 5/12/15.  07/01/16 3% F/T & 2% P/T COLA per budget voted 05/10/16 & TC approval 
05/25/16. 07/01/17 2% F/T & P/T COLA per budget voted 03/14/17 & TC approval 05/10/17.  07/01/18 2% F/T & P/T COLA per warrant voted 03/13/18 & TC approval 05/23/18.

26

87



Staff Report
Title: Unsealing of Council Non-Public Session Minutes

June 2017 - May 2018
Date: 05/23/18

Background Discussion of Issues
Per the Town Council Rules of Procedures Section 8.f.:
“Unsealing of the non-public session minutes for the current fiscal year (June 1st to May 31st) shall occur annually 

at the Council’s last meeting in May when, in the opinion of a majority of members, the circumstances that sealed 
the minutes no longer apply in accordance with RSA 91A:3 III.”

Per RSA 91A:3 III:
“Minutes and decisions reached in nonpublic session shall be publicly disclosed within 72 hours of the meeting, 
unless, by recorded vote of 2/3 of the members present taken in public session, it is determined that divulgence of 
the information likely would affect adversely the reputation of any person other than a member of the public body 
itself, or render the proposed action ineffective, or pertain to terrorism, more specifically, to matters relating to the 
preparation for and the carrying out of all emergency functions, developed by local or state safety officials that are 
directly intended to thwart a deliberate act that is intended to result in widespread or severe damage to property or 
widespread injury or loss of life. This shall include training to carry out such functions. In the event of such 
circumstances, information may be withheld until, in the opinion of a majority of members, the aforesaid 
circumstances no longer apply.”

Council Non-Public RSAs:
 NH RSA 91-A:3 II (a) The dismissal, promotion, or compensation of any public employee or the 

disciplining of such employee, or the investigation of any charges against him or her.

 NH RSA 91-A:3 II (b) The hiring of any person as a public employee.

 NH RSA 91-A:3 II (c) Matters which, if discussed in public, would likely affect adversely the reputation 
of any person, other than a member of the public body itself.

The Council will go into non-public session at their meeting of May 23, 2018 to review all non-public minutes for 
period June 2017 – May 2018.  The Council will then go into public session to make their motion on whether to 
unseal or to remain sealing these minutes.

Recommendation (Including Suggested motion, if appropriate)
Council motion to unseal non-public minutes of a specific date(s) and discussion item(s) AND that all 
other sealed Town Council non-public minutes for period June 2017 – May 2018 are to remain sealed at 
this time.

Fiscal Impact
None.

Prepared By: Donna Fitzpatrick, Administrative Services Coordinator
Town Administrator’s Recommendation

88


	Town Council Agenda
	2016-957 - TC Minutes 050918-U.docx
	2016-975 - staff reporttaxlien.docx
	2016-975 - BackupStaffReport5232018.pdf
	2016-971 - K9-Staff_Report.docx
	2016-971 - SR Trust Fund - K-9 Program.docx
	2016-971 - RSA 31.19.pdf
	2016-959 - Chronical List of Events - ED SWETT.pdf
	2016-977 - staff report - DeRosa Jewelers.docx
	2016-977 - scan.pdf
	2016-976 - staff report - template-x.docx
	2016-976 - Hooksett FD VM900 Boat 04-20-18 (2).pdf
	2016-968 - Staff_Report_-_Street_Name_Approval_-_Brickyard_Pond_Rd.docx
	2016-968 - Street Approval Form - Brickyard Pond Rd..pdf
	2016-949 - Staff Report Asset Mng Program 052318.pdf
	2016-949 - Asset Management Program.pdf
	2016-967 - Staff Report SRF App Phases III-IIIA 052318.pdf
	2016-967 - SRF Application Phases III-IIIA.pdf
	2016-956 - Staff Report TC Meeting Schedule 2018-2019.docx
	2016-956 - 2018-19 TC MEETING SCHEDULE 052417.doc
	2016-961 - Staff Report Classification Pay Plan 052318.docx
	2016-961 - CLASSIFICATION PAY PLAN 052318.xlsx
	2016-966 - Staff Report Non-Public June2017-May2018.docx

